
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Crime & Disorder 
(Overview & Scrutiny) 

Committee
Councillor R J Wells (Chairman)

Councillor A Sandhu MBE(Vice-Chairman)

Councillor S R Jarnell
Councillor Mrs M B Kelly

Councillor R Lees
Councillor C S McLean

Councillor M A Maddison
Councillor D J Mote

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Wednesday 13 February 2019

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford



This page is intentionally left blank



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Wednesday 13 February 2019

1. Apologies For Absence 

To receive any apologies of absence.

2. Declarations of Interest 

To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018 (Pages 1 - 
14)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018.

4. Urgent Items 

The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.

5. To consider references from other Committees (IF ANY) 

There are presently, no references from other Committees for 
Members to consider.

6. Chairman's Update 

7. Regulation 9 Notice (Pages 15 
- 18)

To note the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 15 
January 2019 to 31 May 2019.

8. Kent Police and Crime Panel (PCP) Update (Pages 19 
- 42)

To receive an update from the Chairman in his role as Dartford 
representative on the PCP and to note the contents of the attached 



published Minutes for the Panel meetings held on 19 July, 27 
September and 14 November 2018 respectively.

9. Presentation by Kent County Council Trading Standards 

To receive a presentation from Kent County Council Trading 
Standards Officers.

10. Review of Dartford's 'Safer Streets' Policy 

To receive an update from Kent Police representatives.

11. Kent & Medway Gangs Strategy and County Lines 

To receive a presentation from the Community Safety Manager 
(CSM) and Kent Police. 

12. Dartford and Gravesham Draft Community Safety Partnership 
Strategic Assessment 2018 

(Pages 43 
- 44)

To consider the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) Draft Strategic Assessment 2018 [Item A in the 
EXEMPT agenda papers] as presented to the CSP on 17 January 
2019.

13. Committee Work Plan 2019-20 and Beyond (Pages 45 
- 48)

To note the draft Work Plan for the 2019-20 municipal year and 
beyond attached at Appendix A to the report.
 

14. Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Committee will take place on 24 July 2019, 
subject to formal confirmation at Annual Council on 22 May.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

TO RESLOVE: That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item 
of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of information 
supplied to the Council in confidence.



A. CSP Strategic Assessment 2018 (Pages 49 
- 96)





1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) 
Committee held on Wednesday 25 July 2018.

PRESENT: Councillor R J Wells (Chairman)
Councillor M A Maddison
Councillor C S McLean
Councillor D J Mote

ABSENT: Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE
Councillor S R Jarnell
Councillor Mrs. M B Kelly
Councillor R Lees

Dartford Borough Council Officers:-

Tony Henley – Community Safety Manager, CSU
Michael Morgan – DTAC Manager, CSU
Joanne Philpott – Licensing Manager, CSU
Jade Ransley – Community Safety Officer, CSU

CABINET MEMBERS: Councillor Mrs Ann Allen MBE, Portfolio Holder for 
Community Development [by standing invitation]

PRESENT TO RESPOND TO ISSUES RAISED BY THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:

Acting Superintendent 
Andy Gadd

– Dartford & Gravesham District 
Commander, Kent Police

Inspector Gavin Wade – Dartford CSU Inspector, Kent Police

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S R Jarnell and R Lees 
and subsequently from Cllr. Mrs. Maria Kelly.

An apology for lateness was made by Councillor Mark Maddison who also 
confirmed that he had no declarations to make when he joined the 
proceedings.

The Chairman advised that the Strategic Director (External Services) Mrs 
Sheri Green was continuing to recover from her recent accident at home. 
Members joined the Chairman in wishing Mrs Green a speedy recovery.

Councillor Ann Allen MBE, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Community 
Development was in attendance by standing invitation.



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

2

The Chairman gave a special welcome to the recently appointed CSU 
Inspector Gavin Wade, attending his first Committee meeting and to the 
Dartford & Gravesham District Commander, Acting Superintendent Andy 
Gadd. He also noted the presence of the Community Safety, DTAC, and 
Licensing Managers and the Community Safety Officer.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made during the proceedings.

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 
FEBRUARY 2018 

RESOLVED:

1. That the Minutes of the Committee’s meeting held on 21 February 
2018 be confirmed as an accurate record of those proceedings.

4. URGENT ITEMS 

The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for Members to 
consider.

5. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other Committees.

6. REGULATION 9 NOTICE 

RESOLVED:

1. That the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 15 June to 
31 October be noted.

7. KENT POLICE AND CRIME PANEL (PCP) -  UPDATE 

Members were asked to note the published Minutes for the Kent & Medway 
Police and Crime Panel meetings held on 8 February 2018 and 25 April 2018 
[agenda pages 21-38]. 

In his role as Dartford representative on the Panel, the Chairman highlighted 
the following points for Members regarding the PCP meeting held on 25 April:

 999 and 101 Service – the Police Commissioner had assured the 
Panel that measures were being taken to improve the Service and 
address the impact that the increased volume of priority 999 calls was 
having on the non-emergency 101 service. An additional 40 staff were 
being recruited to the Forces Control Room specifically to answer calls, 
plus a further 20 staff for the Incident Management Unit;



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

3

 Public reporting of Crime – online reporting of crime by the public 
had increased by 11% and public reporting of road traffic collisions had 
increased by 60%;

 Policing of Road Traffic – the Commissioner had expressed his fear 
that post-Brexit from March 2019, there would be significant challenges 
for Kent Police to face, given that 40% of all UK exports went through 
Dover. On that basis, the Commissioner had put a case to central 
Government for Kent to be considered as a special case for extra 
funding to meet increased road policing demands from March 2019;

 Speedwatch - Panel Members had fed-back positively regarding the 
speedwatch scheme, with practitioners advising a noted improvement 
in their relationship with Kent Police;

 Mental Health Update -  the Commissioner had welcomed the 
investment made by the Chief Constable to increase the size of Kent 
Police’s Mental Health Team,  with a further increase proposed as part 
of the uplift of an additional 200 Kent police officers during 2018/19.

In response to specific questions from Members the District Commander 
made the following points:

 The recruitment of 40 extra staff to the Forces Control Room to 
improve the 999 and 101 service was an 18 month to 2 year 
programme, given the detailed vetting process involved to successfully 
recruit these staff;

 Incentives were offered to specific officer cadres to remain with Kent 
Police, to help discourage transfers to the Metropolitan Force, but 
given the Met’s ongoing major re-structuring process, such transfers 
were now much less frequent.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the published Minutes of the PCP 
meetings held on 8 February 2018 and 25 April 2018 as presented in 
the Agenda papers (pages 21-38); 

2. That Members note the additional comment and background provided 
by the Chairman concerning the Panel meeting held on 25 April 2018 
as detailed above.

8. PRESENTATION BY DBC LICENSING MANAGER 

Members received a presentation from the Council’s Licensing Manager 
which detailed the key elements of a new and unique ‘workshop training day’ 
for new Hackney and Private Hire drivers and operators (and those renewing 
their licences) to operate in Dartford; provided jointly by the Council’s 
Licensing Team and the Kent Fire & Rescue Service (KFRS); following a 
multi-agency initiative in November 2017. 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

4

The training took place at the KFRS facility in Rochester and utilised the 
Service’s existing ‘Road Safety Experience’ training module, dovetailed with 
mandatory training modules from the Council’s Licensing Team, concerning 
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE Safeguarding) and the ‘Prevent’ element of 
the Government’s Counter Terrorism measures. 

The Workshop comprised two distinct sessions: in the morning the Council’s 
Licensing Team covered the mandatory training modules for ‘Safeguarding’, 
‘Prevent’ and law and policy in an interactive session with drivers to enable 
them to obtain the required ‘credits’ for their licence. Following a break for 
lunch, the afternoon session from KFRS comprising a full Road Traffic Crash 
role play experience, tailored to meet the bespoke needs of the Taxi Driver 
audience. The final part of the day examined statistics for road traffic 
accidents, the consequences of those incidents, and how small changes in 
driving habits could make significant differences to the benefit of other road 
users. Taxi drivers were given the opportunity to ask questions of the Police, 
KFRS and Council Officers and asked to evaluate the training they had 
received. 

Prior to November 2017; following the implementation of the 2017 Dartford 
Borough Council Taxi Licensing Policy earlier that year; new Taxi Drivers (or 
those renewing their licences to operate in Dartford) were provided with an 
information pack to study prior to undertaking a test. Feedback from drivers 
who completed that exercise was poor: they questioned the relevance of the 
information pack [to their daily job] and advised that their test answers were 
simply learnt ‘parrot fashion’ for the test. 

In contrast, as part of the Workshop training, drivers were now shown a 
PowerPoint presentation during the morning session which looked at all areas 
of ‘Safeguarding’, ‘Child Sexual Exploitation’, ‘Human Trafficking’ and ‘County 
Lines’ [transportation of drugs by the young and vulnerable over long 
distances]. The presentation was run as an interactive session, in which 
drivers were asked for their views, to help give them the tools and knowledge 
to deal with these issues. The subsequent Policy and Legislation training was 
undertaken in a lighter ‘Pop Quiz’ format of multiple choice questions, with 
drivers holding up a letter which they thought correlated to the correct answer. 
The final element of the morning session covered the area of Prevent 
(Counter Terrorism) and ran through a number of case studies, adapted to 
make the material more relevant to drivers in both their work and home 
environments.

Following an initial pilot Workshop in February 2018, two additional training 
days had been held in May and July at the KFRS facility at Rochester with 
good attendance and very positive feed-back from the taxi drivers.

In response to specific questions from Members, the Licensing Manager 
confirmed that drivers were taking the new Workshop training seriously with 
uptake from Private Hire Traders better than Hackney Cab operators, some of 
whom objected to the training fee and loss of daily wages. She added that 49 
out of 50 feed-back forms from participants had been very positive.



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

5

Members welcomed the initiative shown by the Council’s Licensing Manager 
and her Team, and thanked her for an excellent presentation. Members also 
noted the unique nature of the multi-agency training within Kent and London 
to their knowledge, and suggested that the Council might wish to consider 
advertising the 1 day workshop more widely in the local press, and via the 
Council’s twitter feed and website.

9. DARTFORD TOWN AGAINST CRIME (DTAC)  PROGRESS REPORT 

The covering report from the Dartford Town against Crime (DTAC) Manager 
enclosed a progress report covering the operation of the scheme during the 
period 1 April to 2017 to 31 March 2018 [attached as Appendix A to the 
report].

The progress report and accompanying PowerPoint presentation covered the 
following principal areas:

 Performance of DTAC by way of reports/information;
 Crime statistics from Police.uk web-site;
 Shop-safe radios and Council CCTV;
 Policing of the Town;
 DTAC finances;
 New/Leaving DTAC members;
 General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) / auditing of DTAC Disc

The DTAC Manager highlighted the following points in his presentation to 
Members:

 Performance of DTAC via reports/information from DTAC Disc 
system – business members had continued to report to DTAC at a 
steady average rate of 89 reports per month during the year, with 
seasonal fluctuations noted during school holidays, adverse weather 
and the DTAC Managers annual leave cycle. Business membership 
had peaked at 74 in August 2017 and subsequently dropped to 61 in 
June 2018 equating to a 12% loss in membership. The number of 
users with access rights to DTAC Disc data had also fallen from a peak 
of 116 in January 2018 to 99 at present. Auditing of the membership 
and the new requirements imposed by the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) post May 2018 were seen as principal causes. The 
average number of log-ins to disc was 235 per month, but fluctuated for 
the same reasons as those pertaining to the submission of DTAC 
reports from businesses. The DTAC Disc ‘Alert’ system informed 
members of offences, crime methods and other matters of interest 
automatically, irrespective of whether members were logged onto Disc. 
Alerts averaged 4 (four) per month;

 Reports of losses & recovery of goods to DTAC – in terms of value, 
recorded losses had increased steadily from £31.3K in 2016 to £55.7K 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

6

in 2017 and a projected £58.9K in 2018. Similar increases had been 
recorded for recovered goods. The increases were seen as a reflection 
of the willingness of businesses to report matters to DTAC rather than 
an actual upward increase in trajectory for such losses and recoveries;

 Crime statistics from the Police.uk web-site – Local & Most Similar 
Town Groups: ‘Shoplifting within 1 mile of Town Centre’ had remained 
constant over the previous 12 month period with a seasonal ‘spike’ of 
52 offences in December 2017 (the run-up to Christmas) preceded by 
a seasonal low of 22 in September 2017: on average 38.5 cases of 
shoplifting were recorded per month. Instances of ‘ASB, Public Order 
offences & Criminal Damage’ fluctuated with a seasonal peak in 
October and November (Halloween and Guy Fawkes’s Bonfire night) 
preceded by lower figures in the period July – September. The winter 
months and the particularly cold weather in February and March 2018 
had had a drastic ‘positive’ impact on crime levels. However, the 
advent of finer weather from April onwards had seen a rise in these 
offences. The offences of ‘Violence against the Person, Robbery & 
Theft from Persons (Pickpocketing)’ were also subject to fluctuation.  
Within Dartford’s family of Most Similar Town Groups (MSTGs)/CSPs 
the Council had achieved some varied results in the year ending 
December 2017. In terms of all crime recorded out of 15 similar 
Towns/CSPs across England and Wales Dartford’s crime rate was 
second highest behind only Peterborough with Medway third highest. 
For Shoplifting Dartford was 6th highest with Medway again below us. 
For Violence against the Person, Dartford was 2nd highest behind 
Medway and for Public Order offences Dartford was 4th highest with 
Medway in 5th place;

 Shop-Safe Radios & CCTV – 4 (four) radios had been reported from 
D-TAC businesses in the past 12 months with a further 5 (five) radios 
awaiting repair. The expanded digital system was up and running with 
only minor technical issues concerning masts. The expansion of the 
DTAC radio system to Longfield had been agreed between the Parish 
and the Council and was 99% complete, pending the final £2K tranche 
of funding. Two more operators had been recruited for the Council’s in-
house CCTV operation to address previous staffing issues which had 
led to some loss of coverage in the Town centre and a fall in DTAC 
membership. The recruitment of additional staff was expected to 
resolve both issues;

 Policing of the Town – Dartford businesses were generally content 
with the level of policing in the Town which benefited from a dedicated 
Town Centre PC supported by a PCSO;

 DTAC Finances - continued to be managed by the Council’s Finance 
Department. Business membership remained at £36 p.m. plus VAT 
with Charity shops paying £10 p.m. plus VAT. Those fees combined 
with the Council’s contribution gave an approximate annual income of 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

7

£31,000. Outward expenditure included the DTAC radio licences, radio 
repairs and up-grades, and the minimal costs of membership meetings. 
Licence renewals cost £250 and the new mast and radio system for 
Longfield was projected to cost some £4,000 with some £2,000 of 
funding still to be identified.  The annual licence for the Disc system 
was £1200 and public liability insurance amounted to £340.  Capital 
revenue had fallen with the loss in membership, but it was hoped that 
new membership and revenue would accrue from businesses in 
Longfield once the new mast was erected; 

 New/Lost DTAC members– in the preceding 12 months the D-TAC 
Scheme had lost 13 and gained 4 member businesses equating to a 
12.2% drop in business membership. Reasons for businesses leaving 
the Scheme included 4 closed down, 4 due to financial circumstances, 
4 cited CCTV coverage and 1 had given no explanation. 2 further 
business were considering leaving the Scheme citing issues with 
CCTV;

 General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) – The advent of GDPR 
[from May 2018] had required all DTAC members to re-sign revised 
confidentiality agreements, liaison with Kent Police’s Data Protection 
Officer, and new DTAC policies to be written for approval by the 
Council’s Head of Legal Services which, when approved would be 
used as a template for other BCRP’s in Kent. An audit of the Disc 
system had also been undertaken to ‘cleanse’ of all information more 
than 2 years old to further comply with GDPR.

In a subsequent Q&A session the DTAC and Community Safety Managers 
and the District Commander confirmed the following additional points for 
Members:

 The Council’s CCTV operation remained the best in Kent, despite 
recent issues and concerns expressed by some DTAC business 
members. It was hoped to bring the control function for the DTAC 
operation back within the Civic Centre. New CCTV cameras had been 
purchased and 2 new CCTV staff recruited by the CSU/EARS 
Manager. It was important that Dartford’s CCTV operation was pro-
active to give maximum support to businesses;

 It was hoped that DTAC membership would expand by up to 10% 
when the Longfield mast was erected, with the potential to recruit some 
70+ business in the Parish;

 Given the advent of GDPR information sharing with other partner 
agencies across Kent was confined to details of known criminals and 
those being released from prison;

 Officers would examine how best to advertise the DTAC success story, 
the Taxi course and other notable aspects of the Dartford CSU 
operation e.g. Dartford had the top PCSO in Kent;

 Statistics for Robbery and Theft in the Town were high, required close 
monitoring but were not believed to be endemic. The further re-



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

8

classifications for specific crime types, particularly violence against the 
person made by the Home Office, allied to expanded HO crime 
recording requirements had impacted adversely on Dartford’s statistics 
and consequent public confidence and fear of crime. Until truly 
comparative figures were available in 2019-20, the CSU and Kent 
Police would have to ‘ride out the storm’ of adverse crime statistics.

 RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the achievements of the DTAC Scheme in the 
period under review as set out in Appendix A to the report;

2. That Members express their appreciation of the current DTAC Scheme 
and its operation by the DTAC Manager.

10. UPDATE ON THE REVIEW OF DARTFORD'S SAFER STREETS POLICY 

The District Commander and CSU Inspector, Kent Police advised Members 
that the current review of Dartford’s Safer Streets Policy remained ongoing 
and was not yet at the final report stage, but the following 
points/considerations would help form the new Policy:

Current Patrolling Strategies for Town Centre

A review conducted by the CSU Inspector over three consecutive week-ends 
of the current patrol patters had revealed that;

 The main anti-social activity in the Town Centre from the Night-Time 
economy occurred after midnight;

 Dispensing with patrols pre-midnight could free between 4 to 6 Officers 
for other duties;

 Increased use of Special Constables to police the Night-Time economy 
could produce further staff ‘savings’ for re-location to other duties

 Existing venues in the Town Centre operating as part of the Night-Time 
economy would be re-visited and re-appraised;

 Existing hot-spots would be re-evaluated;
 Liaison with British Transport Police would be increased to address the 

known problem of criminals from London and elsewhere in Kent and 
Essex commuting to Dartford station to commit offences in the 
Borough.

The following points were made by the District Commander, CSU Inspector 
and the Community Safety Manager, in response to specific questions from 
Members:

 The CSM advised that an unforeseen consequence of GDPR  was that 
Kent Police could not furnish the Council [as a second user under the 
Act] with details of car owners who had committed parking offences 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

9

with a consequent impact on the ability of Traffic Enforcement Officers 
to issue PSPOs;

 The District Commander confirmed that Kent Police were fully aware of 
the potential impact on public confidence that withdrawing patrols of 
the Town Centre at the week-ends prior to midnight might have. Data 
from the current patrolling patterns was still being reviewed and public 
opinion to any proposed changes being gauged utilising social media, 
the CSU twitter feed account. Once the new patrol patterns had been 
confirmed Kent Police and the CSU would undertake a media 
campaign via the CSU twitter feed and the Police website to ensure 
that the public were made aware of the new proposals before they 
instituted.

The Chairman thanked the District Commander and the CSU Inspector for a 
valuable update and their positives responses to Members’ questions and 
concerns.

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Chairman advised that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) he was required to confirm that no members of the 
press and public were present in the Council Chamber prior to consideration 
of the Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Partnership Performance 
Report for July 2018 [Item A in the EXEMPT agenda].

The Committee Co-ordinator confirmed for the record that no Members of the 
press or public were present and the Committee went into closed session.

12. PERFORMANCE - DARTFORD & GRAVESHAM CSP PERFORMANCE 
REPORT JULY 2018 

The Committee considered in closed session, the Dartford & Gravesham 
Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) Quarterly Performance Report - July 
2018 (enclosed as Item A in the EXEMPT agenda papers).

The covering report from the Community Safety Officer (CSO) asked 
Members to note the contents of the July 2018 Performance report [EXEMPT 
Item A] which detailed performance in relation to recorded levels of crime and 
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) in Dartford and Gravesham, as an indication of 
the CSP’s current position within Kent as a whole. The Performance report 
also highlighted key Community Safety activity that had been delivered in both 
Dartford and Gravesham, since the CSP had last met, as a means of 
monitoring the Partnership’s progress in addressing its strategic priorities. 

The covering report also advised Members that the format for the July 2018 
Performance report differed from previous reports, due to the various changes 
in crime data recording processes that had been introduced nationally. As a 
consequence; the data for recorded crimes in the period under review was not 
comparable to that for the corresponding period in the previous year; and any 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

10

comparisons made between the two periods would be neither reliable nor 
useful. However, the new practices had not affected the recording of incidents 
of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and year-on-year comparisons for recorded 
levels of ASB were still valid. It was expected that year-on-year comparisons 
of crime rates would be possible [and relevant] from 2019-20 onwards. Whilst 
the Police crime data was incomparable year-on-year, work had continued 
within the Dartford and Gravesham CSP to improve access to data sets to 
provide insight to the risks the data was identifying, as part of the refresh 
process of the Partnership’s Community Safety Plan, including the additional 
priority relating to Nuisance vehicles including bikes, which had been 
identified through locally received information rather than Kent Police data.

In response to a variety of questions from individual Members concerning 
specific aspects of the July 2018 Performance report [EXEMPT Item A] the 
CSM and the CSO confirmed the following points:

 CCTV Operator – report para 2.1.4 (agenda p. 128) - a grant of £38K 
had been secured from the Kent Police and Crime Commissioner 
(PCC) to recruit an additional CCTV operator on a 1 year fixed-term 
contract, with the intention to apply for a further PCC grant in 2019. 
The staffing addition had already helped to identify perpetrators 
involved in serious incidents through the use of CCTV footage;

 Gang prevention Measures – para 2.1.4 (p.128) – a bid to the PCC 
for funding to support some Gang intervention work had been 
unsuccessful, as had a funding bid to the Home Office’s “Trusted 
Relationship Fund” (TRF). However KCC, who had submitted a 
County-wide Gang’s based bid into the TRF had been successful in 
progressing to the next round of the bidding process. If KCC’s bid was 
ultimately successful, it was hoped that Dartford would benefit under 
the County-wide criterion. An emerging issue appeared to be that of 
Gang members and their families being accommodated in Dartford on 
a temporary basis, by London Authorities. Dartford’s CSO had 
established working relationships with relevant Council staff in 
neighbouring Boroughs, to ensure the Council was aware of such 
moves which, it was believed, was a widespread practice amongst 
London Authorities. Continued liaison between and within local 
authorities would therefore be essential going forwards. It was 
acknowledged that despite best efforts, there was no guarantee that 
Dartford CSU officers would be notified of such temporary 
accommodation moves by London Authorities. If Members or their 
constituents believed that ASB (whether Gang related or not) was 
emanating from properties in Dartford, including those housing tenants 
from other local authorities, they should inform the CSU who would 
make the relevant enquiries to enable the appropriate action to be 
taken. The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Community Development 
[attending by standing invitation] expressed her particular frustration 
over London Authorities ‘dumping’ their vulnerable residents in Dartford 
(including Gang members) because they could afford to pay higher 
rents to local landlords [than the Council] but gave no thought to the 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

11

social care provision such vulnerable adults and adolescents required. 
She regarded this growing practice by London Authorities as 
particularly reprehensible. The CSM repeated his plea for specific 
details of all/any such incidents, which the CSU team would then 
follow-up appropriately, including with any other local authority if 
relevant;

 Nuisance Bikes – para 2.1.6 (agenda p.129) Members advocated 
advertising success stories and current offences via social media to 
keep residents informed;

 Fly Tip Enforcement Campaign – para 2.1.7 (agenda p. 129) – the 
Council had a new dedicated Enforcement Officer and the campaign 
was being run as a multi-agency operation with CSU support and Kent 
Police back-up.

The Lead Member for Enforcement & Community Safety [attending as a 
Committee Member] advised Members that Dartford, in common with all local 
authorities in Kent and England, faced significant new challenges in 
combating crime and Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB). It was essential that all 
agencies within the CSP continued to co-operate and share information to 
meet these challenges and avoid a ‘silo’ mentality of operation. The daily 
briefings provided by the CSU which Members could attend and the work of 
Dartford’s Vulnerability Forum provided excellent examples of ‘best practice’ 
in addressing and combating crime and associated social issues.

The Chairman thanked the CSM and CSO for their contributions to the debate 
and welcomed the measures set out in the CSP’s July 2018 Performance 
report to address gang issues, nuisance bikes and fly-tipping.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety 
Performance Partnership’s (CSP) Performance Report – July 2018 
detailing performance in relation to levels of crime, anti-social 
behaviour and other indicators as set out in Appendix A to the report 
[submitted as EXEMPT Item A in the agenda papers]. 

13. 2018 REFRESH TO CSP COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY (2016-19) 

The report placed before the Committee the Dartford & Gravesham 
Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) Community Safety Strategy (2016-19) 
2018 Refresh document [attached as Appendix A to the report] for Member’s 
consideration and comment as appropriate.

At its meeting on 21 February 2018 [Min. No. 27 refers] the Committee had 
considered the CSP’s Strategic Assessment (SA) 2018 document. The 
priorities identified in the SA 2018 together with the views of partner agencies 
and elected Members, had been reflected in the Community Safety Strategy 
(2016-19) Refresh 2018 document and agreed by the CSP in March 2018. 



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

12

Members welcomed the 2018 Refresh document, in particular the increased 
use of local knowledge by CSU Officers, including using feedback from 
residents and the local British Legion, which had resulted in the apprehension 
of 3 perpetrators in eastern Dartford involved in Nuisance bike offences and 
theft. The Mayor expressed his particular appreciation of the action taken by 
the Dartford CSU Inspector in this respect.

RESOLVED

1. That Members note the contents of the Dartford & Gravesham 
Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) Community Safety Strategy 
(2016-19) 2018 Refresh document [attached as Appendix A to the 
report].

14. COMMITTEE'S ROLLING WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2018-19 

The report from the Committee Co-ordinator attached at Appendix A to the 
report, a draft rolling Work Programme for the 2018-19 municipal year for 
Member’s consideration.

Following previous discussion of ‘Gangs’ in the context of the CSP’s July 
2018 Performance report [Min. No. 12 refers], Members confirmed that the 
Committee should receive a report on all aspects of Gangs and gang 
members currently operating in Dartford, or transferred to the Borough from 
London and other local authorities. Cross-border co-operation with other 
Police Forces and local authorities, the social implications of such Gang 
activity for Dartford residents, and the cost of measures to combat Gang 
activity in the Borough (including the provision of social care and housing) 
should also feature as elements in the report submitted to the Committee at 
its next meeting in February 2019.

Members also confirmed the proposal to receive a presentation from Kent 
Trading Standards in February 2019 which would concentrate on measures 
being undertaken to protect the elderly and vulnerable from fraudulent 
contractors and operators.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members approve the draft Work Programme attached at 
Appendix A to the report with the additions outlined above. 

15. CRIME AND DISORDER (O&S) COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 

The covering report from the Committee Co-ordinator asked Members to 
consider a draft report [attached as Appendix A] on the work carried out by 
the Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) Committee during the 
preceding 2017-18 municipal year and comment as appropriate, prior to 
submission to the General Assembly of the Council in accordance with the 
terms of its Protocol [attached as Appendix B to the report].



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 25 JULY 2018

13

The Chairman thanked the Committee Co-ordinator for the 2017-18 Annual 
Report and for his support of the Committee during the preceding municipal 
cycle. Members echoed these sentiments.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the Committee’s Annual Report 
covering its work during the 2017-18 municipal cycle;

2. That the 2017-18 Annual Report be submitted to the General Assembly 
of the Council as submitted in the agenda papers [pages 73-124].

The meeting closed at 8.55 pm

Councillor R J Wells
CHAIRMAN





15 January 2019 - 31 May 2019

1 of 4

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE

This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly.

All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively.

Cabinet Members:

Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Overall Strategy
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader, Strategic Service Provision & Town Centre
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Community Development
Councillor P F Coleman, Portfolio: Front Line Services, Customer Champion & Housing
Councillor K M Kelly, Portfolio: Transport and Infrastructure
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Strategic Council Finances & Major Capital Projects
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Events, Leisure & Heritage

All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk.

This notice supersedes all previous notices.

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/
mailto:memberservices@dartford.gov.uk


2 of 4

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Award of Refuse Collection and 
Street Cleansing Contract 2019 to 
2024

To award the contract for Refuse 
Collection and Street Cleansing from 
2019 to 2024.

Cabinet
24 Jan 2019

Dave Thomas, Waste & Parks 
Manager
Tel: 01322 343273
dave.thomas@dartford.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)

Write-off of National Non-
Domestic Rates

To consider writing-off Non-Domestic 
Rate debts where it has not been 
possible to obtain payment because 
of insolvency, because the ratepayer 
cannot be traced or where the debt 
is otherwise irrecoverable.

Cabinet
24 Jan 2019

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended).



3 of 4

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Revenue and Capital Budgets 
2019/20

To set the levels of expenditure for 
Dartford Borough Council capital and 
revenue budgets for 2019/20, to 
approve the level of rents chargeable 
for Housing Revenue Account 
dwellings for 2019/20, to agree the 
level of Council Tax for Dartford 
Borough in its parished and 
unparished areas for 2019/20, to 
approve the Pay Policy Statement 
for 2019/20 and to determine sundry 
related matters. 

Cabinet – 
recommendation 
under delegated 
authority to be 
reported to the 
General Assembly 
of the Council 
(Budget)
25 Feb 2019

Budget consultation with 
residents and 
businesses – December 
to January – mainly via 
website.

Tim Sams, Financial Services 
Manager
Tel: 01322 343148
tim.sams@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Housing Repairs and Maintenance 
Measured Term Contract

To seek approval to commence the 
tender of the Housing Repairs and 
Maintenance Measured Term 
Contract. The current contract ends 
on 31 March 2020.

Cabinet
7 Mar 2019

Peter Dosad, Head of Housing
Tel: 01322 343327
peter.dosad@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN

Stone Lodge - Appropriation for 
Planning Purposes

  

Cabinet
7 Mar 2019

Appropriation for 
planning purposes to be 
advertised post in 
principle decision by 
Cabinet.

Marie Kelly-Stone, Head of Legal 
Services
Tel: 01322 343634
marie.kelly-
stone@dartford.gov.uk

OPEN



4 of 4

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified)

Housing Benefit Overpayment 
Write-offs

To consider writing-off Housing 
Benefit overpayments where it has 
not been possible to obtain payment, 
where the Tribunals Service has 
exercised its discretion not to 
recover overpaid sums or where 
recovery is not permissible under the 
relevant Housing Benefit or Council 
Tax Benefit Regulations.

Cabinet
7 Mar 2019

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraphs 1 & 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)

Write-off of National Non-
Domestic Rates

To consider writing-off Non-Domestic 
Rate debts where it has not been 
possible to obtain payment because 
of insolvency, because the ratepayer 
cannot be traced or where the debt 
is otherwise irrecoverable.

Cabinet
7 Mar 2019

Sue Cressall, Revenues Manager
Tel: 01732 227041
sue.cressall@sevenoaks.gov.uk

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report, which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)



1

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber - Sessions House on Thursday, 19 July 2018.

PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr N J D Chard, Cllr M Dearden, Cllr F Gooch, Ms S Hamilton, 
Cllr MJ Holloway, OBE, Cllr P Todd, Cllr H Tejan and Mrs E Bolton

ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Mr A Harper 
(PCC's Chief of Staff) and Mr Robert Phillips (PCC's Chief Finance Officer)

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr M Campbell (Policy Officer) and Mr J Cook (Scrutiny 
Research Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

271. Election of Chairman 
(Item 2)

1. Mr Cook (Clerk) invited nominations for Chair.  Cllr Todd nominated Mike Hill; 
nomination seconded by Cllr Gooch.  There were no other nominations.

RESOLVED that Mr Hill be elected Chair

272. Election of Vice-Chairman 
(Item 3)

1. Nominations were invited for Vice-Chair.  Mrs Bolton nominated Gurvinder 
Sandher; nomination seconded by Cllr Gooch.  There were no other 
nominations.

RESOLVED that Gurvinder Sandher be elected Vice-Chair

273. Membership 
(Item 4)

RESOLVED that the membership changes be noted.

274. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 25 April 2018 
(Item 7)

1. The Commissioner provided brief updates regarding questions asked at a 
previous Panel meeting;

 Progress made regarding improving access and support in relation to 
people with a hearing impairment.

 101 progress – positive news despite call spike during the World Cup 
(which was normal and expected).  Both call-waiting times and drop out 
numbers had reduced.



2

 Chief Constable had accepted the Tribunal findings in the PC Angus 
Bowler case and was looking into the grievance process.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 April were an accurate record 
and that they be signed by the Chair.

275. PCC's Annual report 2017/18 (including financial information) 
(Item B1)

1. As per the legal requirement to present an Annual report, which outlines the 
exercise of the Commissioner’s functions in each financial year and the progress 
made in the financial year in meeting the police and crime objectives in the police 
and crime plan, the Commissioner presented the 2017/18 Annual Report to the 
Panel.

2. The Commissioner explained that, while the accounts had received an 
unqualified opinion, he had decided, in the interests of transparency, to report 
that a technical error in the Police financial systems had recorded small 
overpayments over a number of years.  This had led to £1m in unspent funds 
being accumulated, which having now been identified had been added to the 
reserves.  He also reassured that Panel that the technical glitch had been fixed. 

3. The Commissioner drew the Panel’s attention to several areas of progress. In 
particular, he drew attention to the introduction by the Chief Constable of the 
New Horizon policing model, in support of his Police and Crime plan, which he 
said had maintained focus on neighbourhood policing while also providing 
resources to specialist units, such as the missing children and exploitation unit, 
which had resulted in a significant reduction in officer time dealing with such 
cases. The Commissioner pointed out that, unlike is some other areas, he had 
been able to use the additional funding to increase the number of police officers 
and to maintain the number of PCSOs. 

4. The Commissioner drew attention to the funding he had provided to support 
people with mental health issues in order to decrease demand on the police. He 
gave examples of where these projects were starting to produce positive results. 
The Commissioner also drew attention to the funding he had provided for 
restorative justice, which had doubled from the previous year. The Commissioner 
said that there was good evidence that restorative justice was helping to reduce 
re-offending.

5. The Commissioner said that there had been an increase in the number of cases 
of modern day slavery and child sexual exploitation and that the projection was 
that cases of these types would continue to increase in the future.



3

6. Finally the Commissioner drew attention to his continued support for volunteering 
and for the Community Safety Partnerships, where he had maintained funding 
levels from the previous year.

7. The Panel drew attention to the reducing level of reserves and asked whether 
3% general reserve was considered adequate. The Commissioner explained 
that, while not a formal recommendation, 3% was consider by HMICFRS to be 
an adequate provision. Panel members then drew attention to the capital budget 
which had been significantly underspent. The Commissioner explained that this 
was due to several factors, including national projects that were progressing 
more slowly than planned and a degree of over-ambitious planning by the Force. 
The Commissioner said that closer monitoring was being introduced together 
with a more flexible approach which would enable other projects to be 
undertaken if those originally planned fell behind schedule. The Panel were 
pleased to note the unqualified opinion on the accounts and also the fact that the 
accounts had been closed very quickly after the end of the financial year.

8. The Panel asked the Commissioner how he held the Chief Constable to account 
in respect of deaths in custody and the Commissioner explained that he received 
data on the use of force generally at his Performance and Delivery Board and 
that when particular reports were received he met with the Chief Constable to 
discuss them.

9. The Panel commended the Commissioner on the survey he was conducting into 
cyber-bullying and sought an assurance that he would continue to invest in 
projects that helped to tackle an increasing problem. The Commissioner said 
that, once the survey results were known, he intended to develop ideas further in 
the light of those results.

10. The Panel asked about the level of interest in volunteer PCSOs and the 
Commissioner explained that, while there is interest, progress is quite slow, most 
likely because Kent police is recruiting to many other roles - regular officers,  
police staff,  PCSOs and Special Constables - at the same time.

11. In conclusion the Panel commended the progress shown in the Annual Report 
and also commended the Force on its exceptional performance over a number of 
years, noting that it had been rated as good or outstanding in every category of 
HMICFRS PEEL assessment over several years. 

12. The Commissioner thanked the Panel for their positive comments.  He advised 
the Panel that he was very proud of the frontline work delivered by Kent Police 
and that the excellent PEEL assessments highlighted the quality of this work.  
The Commissioner highlighted to the Panel that the role of a Police Officer was a 
challenging and dangerous one which required special, dedicated people and he 
was proud to be associated with them.

RESOLVED that;



4

a) The Annual Report be noted
b) The Panel’s required report be prepared by Officers, in line with 

comments made during the meeting.
c) The PCC be asked to pass on the Panel’s congratulations and thanks 

to Kent Police.

276. Update on PCC's expenditure to support the Police and Crime Plan 
(Item C1)

1. The Commissioner introduced the report on expenditure.  He advised the Panel 
that work had been done regarding the Police ICT company, explaining that this 
represented the potential for better value for money compared to historic ICT 
commissioning.  The Commissioner also highlighted the positive work of the 
victim services being funded, noting the excellent support provided to vulnerable 
people in particular.  This linked to the vulnerability conference which had been 
held in 2017 and subsequent training these services had provided at Kent Police.  

2. Additionally, he drew the Panel’s attention to the other funding provided via the 
Mental Health & Policing fund, which made £250k available for relevant projects.  
The Commissioner also advised the Panel that the £500k had been used to 
increase Community Safety Partnership funding by 10%, which he hoped would 
allow for better long-term planning to for Districts so they could build on the 
already excellent work being delivered around reducing crime and anti-social 
behaviour.

RESOLVED that the update on expenditure be noted.

277. Mental Health - verbal update 
(Item C2)

1. The Commissioner provided an update on Mental Health work in Policing.  He 
drew the Panel’s attention to the increase in s136 detentions, rising from 1089 to 
1532 annually over the last three years.

2. The Commissioner advised the Panel that he wanted to see further progress 
being made in other agencies taking responsibility for managing mental health 
issues rather than defaulting to a police response, which he explained had a 
significant resource implication for the police and also was not in the best 
interests of those people suffering mental health crises.

3. He advised the Panel that the Mental Health Oversight and Policing Board was 
continuing to scrutinise Kent Police and the Kent & Medway Partnership Trust 
(KMPT).  This supported a key part of the plan to improve joint working and 
understanding between relevant partners.

4. The Commissioner explained that the Street Triage Pilot scheme had concluded 
in June and that the model was being reviewed to take into account the findings 
of the Pilot before any long-term plans were finalised.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.



5

278. Police officer recruitment - verbal update 
(Item C3)

1. The Commissioner provided an update on the Police recruitment drive.  He 
explained that 3181 Officers had been in post when he took office and over 3400 
were planned to be post by 2019.  He noted that the increase in total numbers 
was not significant but advised the Panel that this was better than other Forces.  
There had been 935 applications and 430 if these were in the pre-selection 
process.  He explained that much of the police recruitment process was 
nationally mandated but highlighted that Kent had been managing a good turn 
around from application to training within three months.

2. He advised the Panel that the increase in Officer numbers was made possible by 
having strong finances in place and that this was evidenced by Kent Police 
successfully saving £20m while still maintaining or increasing key staff numbers.

3. In terms of overall timescale, the Commissioner explained the indications were 
good that the target of 200 additional Officers would be met.  He drew the 
Panel’s attention that the increase in overall total Officer numbers had to take 
into account of Officers leaving through resignation or retirement, so the actual 
recruitment figure required to achieve this would be closer to 400 new Officers 
joining the Force.

4. Responding to questions, the Commissioner explained that there had been a 
significant increase in applications from BME individuals and that there had been 
a slight increase in the number of female applicants compared to previous 
recruitment periods.  The Commissioner also advised the Panel that due to the 
necessary, extensive training process involved in becoming a Police Officer, 
none of the recruits would be deployed to active service for some time.  
However, he explained that once ready for deployment, a large portion of the 
additional officers would go into visible policing roles and others would work in 
the high harm investigation teams.

5. Responding to questions, the Commissioner explained that Kent Police was also 
committed to ensuring retention and that this was evidenced through continued 
support for the Occupational Health department and Chief Constable impact 
assessments for when Officers are assaulted on duty.  Additionally, the 
Commissioner advised that it should be recognised that Police Constables, were 
the main strength of the Force and would always make up 66 to 75% of the 
Police workforce and that meant that lateral career development and specialism 
opportunities were available to Constables as an alternative to promotion through 
the rank structure.

RESOLVED that the update on recruitment be noted.

279. Accountability - how the PCC holds the Chief Constable to account 
(Item C4)

1. The Commissioner introduced the report into the various ways he holds the Chief 
Constable to account.  He explained that the main method was the Performance 
and Delivery Board meetings which met in public.  The Chief Constable was 
required to attend these meetings to provide information and answer questions 



6

on strategic matters, emerging threats and local issues raised to the 
Commissioner by partner agencies or members of the public.  The 
Commissioner explained that he also met with the Chief Constable every 
Monday to discuss pressing issues.

2. In terms of future development, the Commissioner explained that he intended to 
make the meetings more thematic so that they could better focus on particular 
issues on a rotating basis.  While the Commissioner was reassured by the good 
PEEL inspection results, he was mindful that there were still areas of business to 
consider, review and make recommendations on.  The Commissioner advised 
that Panel that he expected the PEEL assessments would be streamlined in 
future, which would reduce their impact on front line staff.  He also commented 
on the monitoring of Police complaints which involved liaison between the 
Commissioner’s Office and the Independent Office of Police Conduct.

3. Responding to questions regarding action taken to hold the Chief Constable to 
account in relation recent reports regarding the filing of cases despite there being 
a named offender, the Commissioner and his team explained that the most 
common reason for filing, making up half of the total listed in the report and large 
proportion of the remainder involved other evidential difficulties.  This meant that 
there was strong justification for the filing of the cases in majority of incidents 
referenced in the report.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

280. Complaints against the PCC 
(Item E1)

RESOLVED that the report be noted and that it be recognised that the number of 
complaints continue to be low.

281. Future work programme 
(Item E2)

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted.

282. Questions from Panel Members 
(Item F1)

Question 1:  In light of the significant recruitment drive being undertaken by Kent 
Police, can the Commissioner tell the Panel about his vision for the next generation 
of Policing in Kent, which I hope will ensure a forward thinking and future-proofed 
service, and advise what steps he is taking to hold the Chief Constable to account for 
delivering this long-term goal alongside maintaining current core police business? 
(Cllr Malcolm Dearden – Folkestone & Hythe District Council)

1. The Commissioner explained that he wanted to keep Police recruitment open to 
a wide range of people, with no plans to exclude non-graduates from the 
process.  Likewise, the Commissioner confirmed that the Police needed to be 
more representative of the population it served.



7

2. In terms of future development of staff and the organisation, the Commissioner 
advised that there were some significant challenges being posed to Forces by 
the College of Policing plans.

3. Key points the Commissioner was focusing on including encouraging 
applications from all sections of the community, highlighting the continuing 
importance of neighbourhood policing and recognising the growing threat and 
resource implications of fraud and cyber-crime, which now made up half of all 
crime.  These key commitments would be supported by work on further 
collaboration and joint work with partners and other services, more use of 
specialist volunteers.

4. The Commissioner reassured the Panel that he held the Chief Constable to 
account on these issues via the Performance and Delivery Board.

Question 2:  Can the Commissioner reassure the Panel that, as part of holding the 
Chief Constable to account for delivering the ‘Fight Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour’ 
priority within the Community Safety and Criminal Justice Plan, consideration is being 
given to the needs of town centres, with particular reference to issues related to 
street drinkers and rough sleepers (distinct from the homeless)?
(Cllr Michael J Holloway – Dover District Council)

1. The Commissioner advised the Panel that crime was taken seriously whenever it 
happened and that there was a commitment within the Plan to tackle urban crime 
appropriately.  In terms of the specific issues raised, the Commissioner advised 
that these had not been raised to him previously as a significant concern and he 
believed it was an operational matter for local areas to manage.

2. The Commissioner explained that he was aware that there was good work taking 
place at a local level from an enforcement side but he was keen that all involved 
services worked to better understand the driving forces and seek to support 
preventative approaches and refer people to appropriate support services.

3. Responding to supplementary comments from the Member regarding street 
drinkers and rough sleepers contributing to an environment of crime, the 
Commissioner accepted that where criminality takes place the Police should take 
appropriate action but he believed it was more important to focus on the potential 
for support, treatment and preventative measures rather than enforcement.

RESOLVED that the Commissioner’s answers be noted.





1

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber - Sessions House on Thursday, 27 September 2018.

PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Mrs L Game, Cllr F Gooch, Ms S Hamilton, Cllr R Hogarth (Substitute), Cllr A Horton, 
Cllr J Knight, Cllr P Todd, Cllr R Wells, Cllr M Eddy, Mrs E Bolton and Cllr M Rhodes 
(Substitute)

ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Mr A Harper 
(PCC's Chief of Staff) and Mr Robert Phillips (PCC's Chief Finance Officer)

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr J Cook (Scrutiny Research Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

283. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 19 July 2018 
(Item 4)

1. Responding to a question, the Clerk explained that planned update on the 
outcome of a Kent Police linked employment tribunal had been deferred pending 
further internal Kent Police reviews.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July were a correct record 
and that they be signed by the Chairman.

The Chairman advised the Panel and the Commissioner that Mike Campbell, Policy 
Officer, had stepped down from his role supporting the Panel for health reasons and 
he wished the gratitude of the Panel for all Mr Campbell’s excellent work be 
recorded.

The Commissioner also formally noted Mr Campbell’s contribution and wished it 
recorded that he and his Office recognised and were grateful for the tremendous 
support Mr Campbell had provided to the work of the Commissioner, his Officers, 
Kent Police, the Panel and the Police Authority before that.

284. Crime Data Integrity, Recorded Crime & Crime Outcomes 
(Item B1)

1. The Commissioner introduced the report which was a follow-up to the previous 
report to the Panel in 2017 which highlighted the poor crime data accuracy once 
it had been identified via an HMIC inspection.  The Commissioner reiterated that 
he and the Chief Constable had been surprised by the data integrity issue 
considering that Kent Police had been found to be performing very well in all 
other areas.  The Commissioner explained that the Chief Constable had put an 
action plan in place to rectify the problem, at his direction.  



2

2. The key feature of this action plan, in comparison to the follow up work 
undertaken by Kent Police on this matter previously, was that HMIC had been 
closely involved in developing and implementing the solution, ensuring that the 
internal audit and recording processes put in place were in line with the 
requirements and expectations.  It was expected that this would prevent a future 
decline in accuracy as had been seen following the inspection in 2014.  The 
Commissioner reassured the Panel that the majority of recording ‘errors’ under 
the HMIC definition were related to counting rules and exactly how many crime 
reports should be created for the same incident, meaning that the data 
inaccuracy did not necessarily correlate with a failure to record criminal actions 
or support victims appropriately.  In particular, the Commissioner commented 
that the Chief Constable had given assurances that in more serious cases 
related to serious violence or sexual assault, all victims had received the correct 
support even if their incident had not been recorded as an individual crime.  The 
Commissioner advised that HMICFRS were returning to conduct a further 
inspection on this issue on 1 October and the Chief Constable expected the 
results to show a level of 93 – 94% crime data accuracy, which was a good level 
nationally.  The results of the inspection were expected in 2019.

3. The Commissioner provided an overview of recorded crime, as detailed in the 
report.  He explained that the figures had been increasing, in line with an 
expectation that the work regarding data integrity would show an increase in 
recorded crime.  However, he recognised that some of the increases represented 
genuine increases in crime.  Usable data for like for like comparisons was 
expected in 2019.

4. The Commissioner advised the Panel that consideration of context surrounding 
the crime figures was important as the focus for Policing, as per his Plan, was on 
the high harm cases.  There were low numbers for these, compared to the other 
volume crime issues but they were more serious.  The Commissioner noted that 
while recorded crime was up all over the country, the National Crime Survey 
indicated that crime was levelling out.  He commented that regardless of the 
number of crimes, it was important to carefully consider the outcomes being 
achieved, hence why an update on this had been provided in the report.

5. The Commissioner provided an update on crime outcomes, explaining the results 
of Police investigation and crime recording.  He advised that, nationally, justice 
outcomes were down from 15% to 9% in 2017.  In Kent, the number cases not 
progressed because the victim did not wish to support (IP decline) had risen.  
These IP decline outcomes made up over half of the recorded crimes where a 
named offender was not prosecuted.

6. Responding to questions, the Commissioner provided the following information:
 The Commissioner was not aware of problems for Police accessing District 

Council CCTV, though he noted that in the past these processes had 
depended on good relationships between the staff involved.  He hoped that 
the Asset Management System due in 2019 would assist in ensuring 
consistency.  The Commissioner was more concerned about decisions locally 
to decommission CCTV given the impact this would have on crime 
investigation.

 The reasons for the increase in violent crime were varied and not down to a 
single main factor; some was linked to domestic abuse, some was due to 



3

crime recording changes.  The Violence Reduction Strategy led by the 
Commissioner was expected to support managing this.

 The Commissioner confirmed that additional investment into the Investigation 
Management Unit and the Force Control Room had improved the service and 
were expected to make the improvements sustainable, particularly in terms of 
tackling violence against vulnerable people.

 The Commissioner recognised the risks around social media presenting a less 
positive view of the county, as people more often shared negative stories but 
did not share reassurance messages.  He assured the Panel that Kent was a 
safe county.

 The Commissioner would work with Panel Officers to provide to further detail 
on justice outcomes for different crime types.  He emphasised the importance 
of out of court disposals and other non-charge related outcomes such as 
community resolutions and restorative justice as these could better resolve 
the matter for the victim.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

285. Mental Health - Verbal Update 
(Item B2)

1. The Commissioner provided an update on his work regarding Police involvement 
in mental health issues.  He advised the Panel that he was seeking to 
revolutionise the approach to mental health, reviewing all the different aspects 
from both a police and partner agency perspective. He commented that 
HMICFRS have noted the serious issue that a large number of calls to Police are 
from other agencies regarding mental health.  

2. The increase in s136 detentions showed that despite lots of good work being 
done to address the Police involvement in mental health, there was still high 
demand for police intervention and that the police were still supporting other 
agencies when required.  The Commissioner commented that some of the recent 
changes to legislation had meant that other agencies had started to take on more 
work, reducing pressure slightly on the police.

3. To illustrate the impact of on frontline policing, the Commissioner explained that 
in June 2018 the average time spent at A&E with people detained under s136 
was 7 hours and 47 minutes.  As two officers were required for such activities 
this had equated to 1000 hours of Officer time, costing £30k.

4. The Commissioner explained that he had allocated funding from the Mental 
Health and Policing Fund to support work to tackle these issues.  He advised that 
MIND workers would continue in the FCR until August 2019 (with the potential for 
further extension).  The Commissioner also highlighted the work of the review of 
mental health legislation being led by Professor Sir Simon Wesley.

5. Responding to questions, the Commissioner confirmed that the key challenges 
facing Kent Police and him on this issue were the capacity within the mental 
health system and how some other partner agencies responded to mental health 
concern, with the continued expectation that the Police will always pick up the 
pieces.  He noted that additional funding was being made available to the NHS 



4

for mental health issues but he wanted to ensure it was spent appropriately in a 
way that would lead to sustainable improvements, otherwise Police would 
continue to be seen as the default service.

6. The Commissioner formally expressed his thanks to South East Cast Ambulance 
Trust for their hard and to contribution to the mental health programmes.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

286. Recruitment of Police Officers - Verbal Update 
(Item B3)

1. The Commissioner provided a verbal update on progress with the police 
recruitment campaign.  He advised the Panel that 137 new joiners had gone in to 
the training college and over 500 applications were live throughout the various 
stages of the process.  The Commissioner assured the Panel that the Chief 
Constable was confident of achieving the Police Officer establishment number of 
3452.

2. The Commissioner thanked the recruitment team for their hard work, particularly 
given the very prescribed process which limited flexibility.  He also advised the 
Panel that the different entry routes now available (Graduate entry and 
Investigate First) had helped attract more candidates.

3. The Commissioner explained that Kent Police was over establishment for 
PCSOs and that he aimed to maintain at least that figure as current staff left.  He 
also commented that 5 volunteer PCSOs had started and work was underway to 
recruit more.

4. The Commissioner advised the Panel that he would soon be hosting the first 
ever Blue Light jobs fair.  This would involve the Mental Health Trust, Probation, 
Ambulance service, Kent Fire and Rescue Service, Criminal Justice System and 
Kent Police.  This would be held at North Kent College, Dartford, on 26 October 
2018.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

287. Preparations for leaving the European Union 
(Item B4)

1. The PCC introduced his report, explaining that the process for exiting the EU had 
been triggered it was important for all responsible agencies to consider all 
necessary preparations.  He advised that his role as Commissioner had been at 
a strategic level, working with all criminal justice agencies to make sure 
appropriate plans were in place.  As part of this, he had been engaging locally 
and regionally to scope the key challenges.

2. The Commissioner outlined some of the particular issues, such as the Advance 
Passenger Information system, where Kent Police wanted access to more 
information on people coming in and out of the country via the ferry network.  He 
also reassured the Panel that while preparations for public order incidents was 
necessary, significant civil unrest was not expected in Kent.  He explained that all 



5

Policing agencies in the UK had been preparing for the worst case scenario, 
given their role as emergency services.  These preparations did not necessarily 
reflect likely issues.

3. The Commissioner explained that he was the national co-lead for PCCs and the 
Conservative spokesperson on Brexit.  He advised the Panel that he had 
communicated the concerns to the Home Secretary which highlighted the need 
for consideration of a deal with the EU which covered the useful co-operation 
with European criminal justice agencies or that additional funding be made 
available to cover any additional costs to Kent Police related to Kent’s position as 
a gateway to Europe.  The Commissioner advised the Panel that he was due to 
meet with the Home Secretary about this matter soon.

4. The Commissioner reassured the Panel that there was a team of Officers at Kent 
Police working planning for a wide range of outcomes from Brexit but 
commented that some agencies may need to increase their preparedness.  
Responding to questions, he advised the Panel that the particular issues 
affecting Kent with a Police element, such as live animal exports and the 
transport network had been factored into the points raised with the Home 
Secretary in terms of necessary agreements or additional funding.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

288. Decision - Application for Pension Forfeiture 
(Item C1)

No Comments.

RESOLVED that the decision be noted.

289. Decision - 7F Single Procurement Function 
(Item C2)

1. The Commissioner explained that Kent was already engaging in significant 
collaboration with Essex which had supported this partnership taking a lead role 
in organising the wider collaboration within the 7F procurement arrangements.

RESOLVED that the decisions be noted.

290. Future work programme 
(Item D1)

RESOLVED that further updates on Brexit be provided at future meetings as further 
information becomes available, and that the work programme be noted.

291. Questions to the Commissioner 
(Item )

Question 1:  Can the Commissioner advise the Panel how he is working with the 
Chief Constable to ensure that the Kent Police estate (Police Houses, Stations and 
other buildings around the county) is being used effectively in terms of sustainable 



6

operational functions, community benefit and partnership working and that this work 
takes account of the needs of victims of crime and the views of local communities?  
(Cllr Sarah Hamilton)

1. The Commissioner explained that he and the Chief Constable kept the Police 
estate under regular review.  He noted that as visible policing was priority within 
the Policing Plan that considering a modern and collaborative approach estate 
management formed a part of this review process.  As part of this collaborative 
approach, consideration was being given to sharing premises with other blue 
light agencies and there were already good examples of this working well, such 
as having Kent Fire and Rescue based in the Police Force Control Room (FCR), 
the Central Referral Unit at Ashford which had multi-agency staffing and 
Compass House which linked victim and witness services together.

2. Cllr Hamilton, as a follow up question, queried whether due consideration had 
been given to the future needs of the Force in terms of the expected growth in 
the county and asked for reassurance that financial gain from disposal of any 
estates was balanced again potential increased estate needs for the Force.  The 
Commissioner confirmed that these issues were considered carefully, with a 
drive to balance public need against the cost of maintaining estates.  He 
highlighted the example of Ashford Station where it would be more financially 
sound to sell the property and move the station but the community benefit of a 
centrally based station continued to outweigh the financial benefit for now.

Question 2:  In the last Annual Report by the previous Commissioner, she stated that 
the number of police officers had been reduced by 518 due to reductions in funding 
during her tenure. In subsequent Annual Reports, there have been references to a 
desire to recruit some 400 police officers within 18 months, but the establishment 
figures would suggest that that target was not achieved. Can the Police and Crime 
Commissioner tell the Panel what the police officer establishment has been since 
2009/10 at the end of each financial year and when will the objective of recruiting 400 
officers actually be achieved? 
(Dr Mike Eddy)

3. The Commissioner clarified that his announcement had been for the recruitment 
of 400 officers, which would mean an increase to establishment of around 200 
(220 Officers need to be recruited each year to avoid drop in establishment 
figure).  Providing the staff numbers as requested, the Commissioner advised 
that the establishment figure for Police officers of the requested period was:
 2010 – 3787
 2016 – 3182
 2017 – 3261
 2019 – 3452 (planned)

4. Responding to Dr Eddy’s follow up question as to the appropriateness of the 
establishment figure in terms of the challenges facing Policing, the 
Commissioner advised the Panel that he did not that the Officer numbers were 
high enough.  He had supported the significant recruitment of Officers because 
more were needed and he would like to see even greater increases in Officers 
numbers.  He was grateful for the support of the Panel for the police precept 
increases proposed in recent years as these had made the recruitment possible.



7

RESOLVED that the Commissioner’s answers be noted.

292. Minutes of the Commissioner's Performance and Delivery Board meeting 
held on 31 May 2018 
(Item F1)

RESOLVED that the notes of the P&D Board held on 31 May 2018 be noted.





1

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber - Sessions House on Wednesday, 14 November 2018.

PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mrs E Bolton, Cllr B Bradford, 
Cllr J Burden, Cllr M Dearden, Cllr F Gooch, Ms S Hamilton, Cllr R Hogarth 
(Substitute for Cllr P Fleming), Cllr MJ Holloway, OBE, Cllr A Horton, Cllr M Rhodes 
(Substitute for Cllr N Heslop), Cllr H Tejan and Cllr P Todd

ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Mr A Harper 
(PCC's Chief of Staff) and Mr Robert Phillips (PCC's Chief Finance Officer)

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr J Cook (Scrutiny Research Officer) and Mrs A Taylor (Scrutiny 
Research Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

293. Introduction/Webcast Announcement 
(Item 1)

The Chairman stated that it was with great regret that he noted the very sad passing 
of Mike Campbell, the Panel’s Policy Officer; he offered his and the Panel’s 
condolences to Mike’s family.  

Mike had been involved with the Panel for many years and was an invaluable source 
of advice and support. 

The Commissioner also offered his sympathies and condolences to Mike’s family.  
Mike was a tremendous public servant who had provided fantastic support to the 
Commissioner’s Office and the Panel.  

294. Membership 
(Item 2)

1. The Clerk stated that Cllr Ann Napier had replaced Dr Eddy on the Kent and 
Medway Police and Crime Panel.  

2. The Commissioner paid tribute to the contribution Dr Eddy had made to the 
Panel. 

295. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 27 September 2018 
(Item 5)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2018 were a 
correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman.  

296. Update on PCC's Expenditure to Support the Police and Crime Plan 
(Item B1)



2

1. The Commissioner introduced this item which updated Members on the PCC’s 
expenditure to support the Police and Crime Plan.  The report outlined ways in which 
the Commissioner sought engagement and partnership working to keep Kent a safe 
place to live. 

2. In relation to advertisements, the Commissioner had, in a bid to increase the 
number of people responding to the Annual Policing Survey, placed full page adverts 
in six local authorities’ magazines which were delivered to households free of charge.  
The advertisements did not increase the level of engagement to the extent the 
Commissioner would have liked, and he commented that whilst the exercise provided 
valuable feedback, it probably didn’t provide value for money so would not be 
repeated in the same way next year.  A Member recommended that the design of 
publications be reviewed; the Commissioner explained that the aim was to have a 
simple advert that people would engage with, however he took on board the 
comments of Members.  

3. In relation to Commissioned Restorative Justice (RJ) Services, the 
Commissioner explained that this was a way in which victims could engage with 
offenders to support the repairing of harm caused enabling both parties to move 
forward in a positive way.  The value of the commissioned contract was £46,000.  A 
Member mentioned the small number of people (15%) quoted in the report who 
would not recommend RJ to others.  The Commissioner said he would report back to 
Members on the satisfaction rate locally.  

4. Regarding Chaplaincy, this provided a valuable service to police forces and 
the Commissioner was pleased to support the chaplaincy service.

5. In relation to CrimeStoppers Trust, this charity did an excellent job allowing 
people the opportunity to report crime anonymously, by phone and online, 24/7, 365 
days a year.  The Chairman asked whether the Commissioner was content that 
CrimeStoppers received enough funding.    The Commissioner regularly engaged 
with CrimeStoppers and said the issue of funding was difficult, but he had increased 
funding this year in recognition of their important work.  CrimeStoppers also relied on 
support from other areas and it was hoped that in future it would be possible to find 
other ways in which to support them. 

6. In response to a question about crime recording accuracy, the Commissioner 
reassured Members that the Kent Police crime and incident recording team reviewed 
all reports from CrimeStoppers to determine if a crime should be recorded.  In 
relation to concerns around the disproportionately high number of Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic Communities using CrimeStoppers, the Commissioner confirmed that 
the Force was trying to address this.  

RESOLVED that the Panel note the Commissioner’s update on expenditure to 
support the Police and Crime Plan.   

297. Progress on Recruiting and Deploying Additional Officers 
(Item B2)

1. The Commissioner explained that Kent Police was required to find over 
£9million in cost savings this year, irrespective of the precept level set by the 



3

Government.  There was some flexibility in setting the precept, equivalent to £1 per 
month for a Band D property, and this combined with the cost savings, savings made 
in the OPCC, and the use of some reserves gave the Chief Constable the ability to 
recruit up to 200 additional officers and over 80 police staff in 2018/19.  The Force 
had seen positive results in terms of the numbers of people going through the 
recruitment process.  The Commissioner said the Force was hopeful it would be in a 
position to announce the recruitment of the additional 200 officers, making a total of 
400, by January 2019.  

2. There had been an increase in female recruits and these now made up 38% of 
new officers. There had also been an increase in the number of Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic recruits, but the drive continued to better reflect the population the 
Force served. 

3. The Commissioner had worked hard to publicise the Force’s recruitment drive, 
holding a blue lights jobs fair and visiting diverse communities to encourage 
applications from all backgrounds.  

4. A Member commented on the variety of activities that the Commissioner had 
been involved in to publicise the recruitment campaign and asked what had been 
most productive?  The Commissioner explained that is was difficult to quantify what 
had worked, one individual action might have led to several different outcomes.  The 
Commissioner considered that people appreciated the personal touch such as the 
blue light jobs fair which was attended by residents from all over Kent.

5. Referring to para 9 of the report, Members considered that Kent Police was 
not representative, particularly from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
communities.  A Member asked how the additional officers had made a difference 
across Kent.  The Commissioner explained that he was confident that the Diversity 
Inclusion Team was making progress with different groups to encourage applications 
from all backgrounds.  The Commissioner agreed to circulate information outside the 
meeting relating to BAME applications vs officers appointed.  

6. A Member commented that a prime area for recruitment was the military; they 
asked if it was possible to join the Force with visible tattoos and whether there were 
height restrictions and eyesight requirements?  The Commissioner confirmed that it 
was possible to have tattoos and join, but they would be assessed and should not 
depict violent imagery or be where they can’t be covered up, such as on the face, 
neck and hands.  There were no height restrictions on joining but applicants did 
undertake health screening and were required to pass a fitness test.  The 
Commissioner stated that his priority was to boost policing numbers, however he was 
concerned over the available funding if the Government didn’t make the right choice 
over Police Pension payments.  

7. The Commissioner commented that if changes to police recruitment required 
all applicants to have a degree it would limit opportunities for developing a diverse 
workforce and certainly have hampered the Force’s recruitment this year.  Policing 
has changed, and with emerging challenges such as cybercrime there was a need to 
have a balanced workforce.

8.  One Member asked for further information about where the additional 
resources were to be placed?  The Commissioner explained that some of the 



4

additional officers were to be placed in the rural policing team and some in the Roads 
Policing Unit (an additional 7 to their current 91).  Recruitment was currently open for 
a new Crime Squad to deal with volume and serious crime and also Sexual Offences 
Liaison Officers.  Over half of new recruits were being placed in local policing roles, 
including Response, Community Policing and Vulnerability Investigation Teams. 

9. A Member asked about the timeline from application to initial deployment and 
also the cost of the recruitment process.  The Commissioner explained that the team 
had been looking at ways to speed up the recruitment process and it now took 
approximately four months for an individual to start with the Force. Officers spent 19 
weeks at Kent Police College, 10 weeks on Division for investigatory training, and 
were then deployed.  The length of the application process had been halved but 
there was a standard training programme before officers went out on the streets.  

10. In response to a question the Commissioner said he would report back to 
Members on the costs of the recruitment process.  The drop out rate of applicants 
was low.  

RESOLVED that the Commissioners progress report on recruitment of additional 
police officers be noted.   

298. 999 and 101 Service - Improvements Following Recruitment 
(Item B3)

1. The Commissioner reported that in his view the performance of the 101 
service in the past had not been good; he added that this had also been the view of 
Panel Members and members of the public.  However, through a number of 
interventions, performance this financial year had improved.  

2. There had been a review of business practices within the Force Control Room 
(FCR) which had been undertaken by consultants.  There had been engagement with 
staff to understand how best to deploy resources to ensure times of peak demand 
were effectively covered.  In addition there were now extra people working in the 
FCR.  The online reporting system was also beneficial, and whilst it was accepted 
that this may not work for everyone, the Force was starting to see more incidents 
being reported online.  

3. The Commissioner commended the team which had done a fantastic job at 
improving the 101 service, and said he would continue to hold the Chief Constable to 
account to ensure progress was sustained.

4.   A Member commented on the excellent progress of the 101 service, however 
had concerns over the high staff turnover and asked the key reasons for people 
leaving the FCR?  The Commissioner commented that there were 3 key reasons why 
people left the FCR: 

a. Recruitment - in some cases the FCR was used as an access point to 
join as a police officer or to move onto other roles within the 
organisation.  

b. It was a competitive market in Kent and there were a number of similar 
roles available elsewhere. 

c. Work in the FCR could be antisocial with long and anti-social shifts.  



5

5. The Chairman commented that it was an encouraging report, and asked if the 
improvement was sustainable? The FCR was enormously important for public 
confidence.  The Commissioner stated that he believed it was sustainable as there 
was lots of investment going into the FCR and there were no plans to put the 
progress at risk. 

RESOLVED that the Panel note the Commissioners 999 and 101 update report.    

299. Mental Health Verbal Update 
(Item B4)

1. The Commissioner gave the Panel an update regarding Police involvement on 
mental health issues.  He was pleased that the Panel continued to maintain an 
interest in the mental health agenda.  The Home Office had published the latest 
national statistics on the number of people detained under the Mental Health Act 
which showed an increase on last year.  The use of police cells to detain people had 
fallen substantially in recent years.  Nationally, where recorded, 55% of those 
detained were male, 95% were over the age of 18. In terms of ethnicity 86% 
identified as white, 6% Black and 4% Asian.  

2. In 52% of cases a police vehicle was used to transport someone to a place of 
safety under the Mental Health Act, rather than an ambulance.

3.  The Chairman asked about the capacity of other agencies, and whether it was 
increasing?  The Commissioner commented that some of the work undertaken locally 
with Kent & Medway NHS & Social Care Partnership Trust was positive, it was 
broadly better than it had been in the past.  The significant challenge continued to be 
in A&E with mental health patients waiting an average of 8.5 hrs for clearance or 
treatment.  Between May – Sept 2018 this average was based on 328 occurrences, 
with at least two police officers present each time.  There were no current plans to 
increase the number of S136 suites in Kent.  There was hope that additional money 
could be found in the budget for crisis care, investment for preventative schemes and 
treatment was also essential, the lack of preventative services was a problem.

RESOLVED that the Panel note the Commissioners Mental Health verbal update.

300. Sale of Police buildings 
(Item C1)

1. A Member asked whether all the communities affected by the ‘Sale of Police 
Buildings’ decision had had the benefit of a visit from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner?  The Commissioner had invited district and county councillors and 
MPs to make them aware that this was due to take place. There was an opportunity 
to see the Commissioner and ask questions.  

2. The Commissioner explained that none of the buildings, with the exception of 
Deal, could be considered a police station, none had front counter services and they 
were just being used as a base for a Police Community Support Officer (PCSO). He 
added that in a number of the locations, PCSOs would now be based in local fire 
stations, and the buildings would have Kent Police branding added.  In response to a 
comment, the Commissioner accepted that there might be a perception of a 



6

diminishing service, but the PCSOs would remain in the area with a local base.  The 
Commissioner confirmed that no access to the public meant that there was no front 
counter.  

RESOLVED that the Panel note the Commissioner’s decision – Sale of Police 
Buildings.   

301. Future work programme 
(Item D1)

1. The Chairman explained that the February 2019 meeting would look at the 
Budget Proposals and the Commissioner’s Plan.  Last year the Commissioner’s 
Office had held an informal meeting with Members in advance of the meeting – it was 
considered that this was very useful and in response to a request from the Chairman 
the Commissioner agreed to facilitate an informal meeting again in January 2019.  

RESOLVED that the Panel note the future work programme and look forward to 
details of the informal meeting in January 2019.   

302. Questions from Panel Members for verbal response from PCC 
(Item E1)

Question 1: “Despite assurances that Officer numbers are now increasing again 
(circa 3400 at present with a target of 3452) and that sickness absence in the Force 
is low, there remains a perception that fewer Officers now patrol the streets and that 
‘low level’ reported crimes are not investigated thoroughly even when the victim feels 
the matter is important.  These anecdotal concerns are raised with local Councillors 
such as myself.

With the above in mind, could the Commissioner reassure the Panel that appropriate 
measures are being taken to hold the Chief Constable to account for delivering the 
Police and Crime Plan as part of an effective and efficient Force, which includes 
provision for visible neighbourhood policing and reasonable investigation of reported 
crime?” (Cllr Malcolm Dearden).

1. The Commissioner appreciated that this perception might exist, but did not 
believe that this was always fair.  Every crime that was reported to Kent Police, that 
was their responsibility, was investigated.  This was either through the Investigation 
Management Unit or by individual teams in the local area.  The new policing model 
was implemented to support visible policing, local policing teams were retained along 
with Community Safety Units and 204 PCSOs to work within local communities. The 
Commissioner outlined a number of mechanisms by which he held the Chief 
Constable to account.  There was still some way to go and it was hoped that the 
recruitment of additional officers would help to improve the perception.    

Question 2: Chief Constable Sara Thornton, Chair of the National Police Chief’s 
Council opened the Association of Police and Crime Commissioners’ conference on 
1 November. She said that forces are too stretched to deal with “desirable and 
deserving” issues, such as logging gender based hate crimes and “wants us to solve 
more burglaries and bear down on violence” and “refocus on core policing”



7

As well as being a member of the Police and Crime Panel I am also the Vice Chair of 
the Independent Police Advisory Group. I sit on the Force’s Hate Crime Forum and 
much good work is being carried out to address hate crime in the county.

In Kent violent crime and hate crime are increasing. What ways does the Police and 
Crime Commissioner ensure that the Chief Constable has the right balance between 
policing violent crime and hate crime, especially as one of Kent Police’s priorities is to 
“Put victims and witnesses first” (Mrs Elaine Bolton).

2. The Commissioner offered assurance that despite Sara Thornton’s comments 
Kent Police did consider hate crime to be an important issue and continued to 
investigate hate crime and provide reassurance to local communities.  
  
3. The Commissioner considered that the debate was now around issues such 
as misogyny which some police forces were trialing logging as if it was a crime.  
Police Chiefs did not believe that misogyny should be added as a hate crime 
currently, but the Commissioner felt that this should be reviewed.   

RESOLVED that the Commissioner’s answers to the questions be noted. 

303. Dates of meetings in 2019/20 
(Item F1)

RESOLVED that the dates of meetings in 2019/20 be noted.    





Covering CONFIDENTIAL
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

13 February 2019

DARTFORD AND GRAVESHAM COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
(CSP) Draft STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2018

1. Summary

1. To receive the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership Draft 
annual Strategic Assessment for 2018. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership Draft 
Strategic Assessment 2018, in the confidential Appendix to the report, be 
noted. 

2.2 That the priorities identified in the Draft Strategic Assessment 2018, subject to 
the additional amendments proposed by the CSP at their meeting on 17 
January 2019, be noted. 

2.3 That the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership’s intention to 
submit a new Community Safety Plan (2017-2020) to address the priorities 
identified in the Draft Strategic Assessment 2018, be noted. 

2.4    That the Community Safety Plan (2017-2020) be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Committee, on 25 July 2019.

3. Background and Discussion

Under the Committee’s Terms of Reference, and as an Overview 
function, the Committee is required to consider the annual Strategic 
Assessment in connection with the discharge by the Community Safety 
Partnership, of its crime and disorder functions.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Member review of the CSP’s annual Strategic Assessment contributes 
to the Safer Communities Objective and Strategic Aim to create a safer 
Borough in which to work and live.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments*

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None

Risk Assessment Member comment on the proposals as set out in 
the annual Strategic Assessment should help to 
focus the CSP’s efforts on ensuring a safer 
community for Dartford residents.



Covering CONFIDENTIAL
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

13 February 2019

6. Obligation of Confidence
An obligation of confidence arises in relation to the Draft Strategic 
Assessment 2018 document (Appendix A to this report) in that the data 
was provided to the Council on an ‘In-Confidence’ basis.  Appendix A 
will therefore be considered in the EXEMPT part of the Agenda marked 
as Item A.

7. Appendices

Appendix A – Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety 
Partnership’s D&G Draft Strategic Assessment 2018 [Item A in 
EXEMPT papers]

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Dartford and Gravesham 
CSP Draft Strategic 
Assessment 2018

January 
2019

Tony Henley
Ext 3502

External
Strategic 
Community 
Safety/ 
EARS
CSU

Obligation 
of 
Confidence



               
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

13 February 2019

WORK PROGRAMME: 2019-20 MUNICIPAL YEAR and BEYOND

1. Summary

1.1 To agree the contents and timeframe for a rolling Work Programme for the 
2019-20 municipal year and beyond, as required by the Committee’s 
Protocol. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the draft rolling Work Programme attached at Appendix A to this report 
be approved, subject to any amendments/additions Members may wish to 
make, with the guidance of the Strategic Director (External Services).

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The Committee is responsible for setting its own work programme under the 
terms of its Protocol [Section K1-3].  

3.2     A revised rolling Work Programme and timetable for the 2019-20 municipal 
cycle and beyond is attached at Appendix A for discussion and approval. 
Members and Officers may have further topics they wish to suggest for 
possible consideration by the Committee.

4.   Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1     Scrutiny of the responsible local authorities [in the discharge of their crime 
and disorder functions] through the provision of an agreed Committee Work 
Programme should lead to an increase in public confidence and a reduction 
in anti-social behaviour, to help meet the Corporate Plan Safer Community 
SC1 and SC2. 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment Reduction in the incidents of crime 

and disorder and ASB in Dartford 
Town Centre and environs.



              
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

13 February 2019

6.   Appendix

Appendix A: Draft rolling Work Programme for 2019-20 and Beyond;

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File 
Ref

Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Crime and 
Disorder (O&S) 
Agenda and 
Minutes July 
2018, Committee 
Protocol and 
ToRs.

January 2019 David Hook
01322 343276

Democratic 
Services
SD(ES)

N/A



Appendix A

CRIME and DISORDER (Overview & Scrutiny) COMMITTEE
 

WORK PROGRAMME for the 2019-20 MUNICIPAL CYCLE 
and Beyond

Background:

On a statutory basis to:

 Consider the CSP’s annual Strategic Assessment (SA) document

 Consider the CSP’s Community Safety Strategy and annual Refresh 
documents

On a discretionary basis and with the prior agreement of the 
Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Partnership (CSP) as 
appropriate, to review the contributions made by CSP partner 
Agencies to the aims of the Partnership.

Plus:

 To consider the CSP’s mid-term Performance Report;
 To receive updates from the Council’s Kent Police and Crime Panel 

(PCP) representative and to note the Panel’s Minutes as appropriate;
 To receive the Dartford Town Against Crime (D-TAC) Annual Update;
 To consider topics drawn down via the Chairman on an ad-hoc basis, 

with the guidance of the Strategic Director (External Services) and the 
final agreement of the Managing Director;

 Discretionary topics as agreed by the Committee under the guidance of 
the Strategic Director (External Services).

The Committee’s Work Programme is subject to review at each meeting. 
Discretionary items may be rescheduled and new items added in accordance 
with the Committee’s wishes and the guidance of the Strategic Director 
(External Services). 

A draft Work Programme for the 2019-20 municipal cycle and beyond is set 
out overleaf for Members’ consideration.



Appendix A

Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) Committee

 Draft Work Programme for the 2019-20 Municipal Year and Beyond

2019/20 Summer Meeting - 24 July 2019 
 

 Community Safety Strategy 2019-2022
 PCP Update
 D-TAC Annual Update report
 Performance – CSP July 2019 report
 Committee’s Annual Report for 2018-19
 Review Committee’s Rolling Work Programme for the 2019-20 

Municipal Year and Beyond

2019/20 Winter Meeting – 12 February 2020

 Strategic Assessment 2019
 PCP Update
 Update Committee’s Rolling Work Programme for 2020-21and Beyond

2020/21 Summer Meeting - 22 July 2020

 Community Safety Plan (2019-2022) 2020 Refresh
 PCP Update
 D-TAC Annual Update report
 Performance – CSP July 2020 report
 Committee’s Annual Report for the 2019-20 Municipal Year
 Review Committee’s Rolling Work Programme for 2020-21 and Beyond

2020/21 Winter Meeting – 10 February 2021

 Strategic Assessment 2020
 PCP Update
 Update Committee’s Rolling Work Programme 2021-22 and Beyond

Democratic Services 
January 2019 






	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018
	7 Regulation 9 Notice
	8 Kent Police and Crime Panel (PCP) Update
	Item 8 Printed minutes 27th-Sep-2018 14.00 Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel
	Item 8 Printed minutes 14th-Nov-2018 14.00 Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel

	12 Dartford and Gravesham Draft Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2018
	13 Committee Work Plan 2019-20 and Beyond
	dh.FINAL Item13AppendixADRAFTWorkProgramme201819

	A CSP Strategic Assessment 2018

